
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
NEW PORKYS (REVIEW) 

 
AGENDA 

 

10.30 am 
Thursday 

18 July 2013 
Council Chamber - 

Town Hall 

 
Members 3: Quorum 2 
 
COUNCILLORS: 
 

Peter Gardner (Chairman) 
Brian Eagling 
Frederick Thompson 
 

 
 

For information about the meeting please contact: 
James Goodwin - 01708 432432 
james.goodwin@havering.gov.uk 

 
 

Public Document Pack



Licensing Sub-Committee, 18 July 2013 

 
 

 

AGENDA ITEMS 
 
1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF SUBSTITUTE 

MEMBERS  
 
 (if any) - receive 

 

2 DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTERESTS  
 
 Members are invited to disclose any pecuniary interest in any of the items on the 

agenda at this point of the meeting. 
 
Members may still disclose any pecuniary interest in an item at any time prior to the 
consideration of the matter. 
 

3 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENT  
 
 The Chairman will announce details of the arrangements in case of fire or other 

events that might require the meeting room or building’s evacuation. 
 

4 REPORT OF THE CLERK (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
 Report attached. 

 
 

5 REPORT OF THE LICENSING OFFICER (Pages 7 - 62) 
 
 Application to review a premises licence under section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 in 

respect of New Porky’s, Unit 1 Manor Way Business Centre, Marsh Way, Rainham, 
RM13 8UG. 
  
 

 
 Andrew Beesley 

Committee Administration Manager 
 

 
 



 

 
LICENSING  
SUB-COMMITTEE 
18 July 2013 

REPORT 
 

 
Subject Heading: 
 
 

Procedure for the Hearing: Licensing 
Act 2003 

Report Author and contact details: 
 
 

James Goodwin (01708) 432432 
e-mail: james.goodwin@havering.gov.uk 
 

 
This is a hearing to consider an application for a review of a licence under section 
51 of the Licensing Act 2003. The Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 
will govern the arrangements for the hearing of the application now under 
consideration. This report accords with the requirements of that Act and the 
Regulations, and in particular Regulations 21-25 (procedure at the hearing). 
 
1. Membership of the Sub-Committee: 
 
1.1 The Sub-Committee comprises three members of the Licensing Committee, 

with a quorum of two members. Unless there are objections, in the 
absence of three members, the hearing shall proceed with the quorum 
of two. 

 
1.2 A member of the Licensing Committee will be excluded from hearing an 

application where he or she: 
1.2.1 has considered an application in respect of the premises in the 

previous 12 months as a Member of the Regulatory Services 
Committee; or 

1.2.2 is a Ward Councillor for the Ward in which the premises, subject to 
the application, are located; or 

1.2.3 is a Ward Councillor for a Ward which is likely to be affected by the 
application or;  

1.2.4 has a personal interest in the application. 
 
2. Roles of other participants: 
 
2.1 The Legal Advisor is not a party to the hearing. The role of the Legal Advisor 

is to provide legal advice relating to the application and submissions. 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



Licensing Sub Committee, 18 July 2013 

 
 
 
2.2 The Clerk is not a party to the hearing. The role of the Clerk is to record the 

hearing and the decisions of the Sub-Committee, and ensure efficient 
administration 

 
 

3. Representation validation meeting: 
 
3.1 Prior to this hearing, the Sub-Committee Chairman will have met the Legal 

Advisor and/or Clerk to determine whether further clarification is required of 
any issues contained in the review application or any representation. 

 
3.2 During this representation validation meeting, no decision will have been 

made or discussion held regarding the substantive merits of the review 
application or representations. 

 
 

4. Location and facilities: 
 
4.1 All hearings will be heard at the Havering Town Hall unless otherwise 

directed.  
 
4.2 Interpreters will be provided by the Council on request, provided notice is 

given at least five working days before the hearing. 
 
5. Notification of attendance: 
 
5.1 The Chairman will enquire of the parties who is in attendance and the 

parties will indicate their names (and, where relevant, whom they represent). 
A register will be circulated before the commencement of the hearing on 
which the applicant, his/her advisers and companions and all interested 
parties (and/or their representatives) will be asked to record their 
attendance. 

 
6. Procedural matters: 
 
6.1 Prior to the commencement of the hearing, the Chairman of the Sub-

Committee will orally inform the parties whether their applications to have 
certain people attend the hearing (e.g. witnesses) have been granted or 
refused. Note this relates to people other than those attending on behalf of a 
party in the capacity as a representative of the party. 

 
6.2 Prior to the commencement of the hearing the Chairman of the Sub-

Committee will outline the procedure to be followed at the hearing. This will 
normally be as follows: 
 
Introduction of the application: 
 
The party requesting the review will outline: 

Page 2



Licensing Sub Committee, 18 July 2013 

 
 
 

• details of the application and relevant representations received from the 
parties; 

• relevant legislation ; 

• relevant Licensing Policy; and 

• the time limit in which the Council must reach a determination. 
 
Documentary evidence: 
 

• Documentary or other information in support of applications, 
representations or notices should be provided to the Clerk of the Sub-
Committee at least 7 clear working days before the hearing. If this 
information is produced at the hearing it will only be taken into account 
by the Sub-Committee if the Sub-Committee and all the parties consent 
to its submission.  Permission to have this information included in the 
hearing should be requested at the beginning of the hearing before any 
oral submissions have been made. 

 

• Statements made by people in support of a party’s representation who 
are not present at the hearing, must be signed by the maker, dated and 
witnessed by another person. The statement must also contain the 
witness’s full name and occupation. 

 
Representations: 
 

• The Chairman will invite each of the parties at the hearing or their 
representative sequentially to address the Sub-Committee and call any 
person/s to whom permission has been granted to appear. Each party 
will be allowed a maximum period of 10 minutes in which to address the 
Sub-Committee and call persons on his/her behalf. 

 

• This 10 minute period is where each party has the opportunity to orally 
address the Sub-Committee and clarify any points on which the Sub-
Committee has sought clarification prior to the hearing. This 10 minute 
period should be uninterrupted unless a member of the Sub-Committee 
or Legal Advisor considers that the speaker is making submissions that 
are irrelevant, frivolous or vexatious. 

 

• Members of the Sub-Committee may ask questions of any party, at any 
time during the proceedings. Time taken in dealing with a Member’s 
question will not be taken into account in determining the length of time 
available to the party in question to make their representation. 

 
The sequence in which each of the parties will be invited to address the 
Sub-Committee will normally be in the order of: 

• the party requesting the review of the licence 

• the Chief Officer of Police; 

• the Fire Authority; 

• the Health and Safety at Work Enforcing Authority; 

Page 3



Licensing Sub Committee, 18 July 2013 

 
 
 

• the Local Planning Authority; 

• the Local Environmental Health Authority; 

• the Local Weights and Measures Authority; 

• the Local Licensing Authority, 

• the Authority Responsible for the Protection of Children from Harm; 

• a navigation or other authority responsible for waterways; and 

• any other party that has submitted representations in respect of the 
application, certificate, notice or other matter appearing before the 
Sub-Committee; 

• the party whose premises is the subject of the licence review. 
 
At the discretion of the Sub-Committee the above order may be varied. 

 
Cross-Examination: 

 
Where witnesses have been permitted by the Sub-Committee to speak at 
the hearing on behalf of a party, permission must be sought from the Sub-
Committee before another party can ask the witness questions. This 
process of questioning is normally referred to as cross-examination.  The 
Sub-Committee will allow cross-examination only where it is necessary to 
assist it in considering the representations or application.  

 
Relevance: 
 

Information submitted at the hearing must be relevant to the applications, 
representations, or notice and the promotion of the licensing objectives. The 
Chairman of the Sub-Committee is entitled to exclude any information it 
considers to be irrelevant whether presented in written or oral form. The 
licensing objectives are: 

The prevention of crime and disorder; 

Public safety; 

The prevention of public nuisance; and  

The protection of children from harm. 
 
 
7. Failure of parties to attend the hearing: 
 
7.1 If a party, who has not given prior notice of his/her intention not to attend the 

hearing, is absent from the hearing the Sub-Committee may either adjourn 
the hearing or hold the hearing in the party’s absence. Where the hearing is 
held in the absence of a party, the Sub-Committee will still consider the 
application, representation or notice submitted by that party. 

 
  

Page 4



Licensing Sub Committee, 18 July 2013 

 
 
 
8. Adjournments and extension of time: 
 
8.1 The Sub-Committee may adjourn a hearing to a specified date or extend a 

notice period except where it must make a determination within certain time 
limits in the following specific applications: 

 

• Applications for conversion of existing licences where the Sub-
Committee must make a determination within 2 months of the application 
first being received. In default of a decision being made the application 
will be treated as being granted; 

 

• Applications for variation of existing licences where the Sub-Committee 
must make a determination within 2 months of the application first being 
received. In default of a decision being made the application will be 
treated as being rejected; 

 

• Applications for conversion of existing club certificates where the Sub-
Committee must make a determination within 2 months of the application 
being first received. In default of a decision being made the application 
will be treated as being granted; 

 

• Applications for variation of existing club certificates where the Sub-
Committee must make a determination within 2 months of the application 
being first received. In default of a decision being made the application 
will be treated as being rejected; 

 

• Applications made by holders of justices’ licences for personal licences 
must be determined within 3 months of the application first being 
received. In default of a decision not being made within this period the 
application will be treated as being granted; 

 

• Review of premises licences following closure orders made under the 
Licensing Act 2003 where the Sub-committee must make a 
determination within 28 days of receiving notice of the closure order. 

 

• Other reviews of premises licenses where the Sub-Committee must 
make a determination within 28 days of the end of the statutory 
consultation period. 

 
 
9. Sub-Committee’s determination of the hearing: 
 
9.1 At the conclusion of the hearing the Sub-Committee will deliberate in private 

accompanied by the Clerk and the Legal Advisor who will be available to 
assist the Sub-Committee with any legal problems but will not participate in 
any decision making of the Sub-Committee. 

 

Page 5



Licensing Sub Committee, 18 July 2013 

 
 
 
9.2 The Sub-Committee will normally make its determination and announce its 

decision at the end of the hearing. 
 
9.3 Where all parties have notified the Sub-Committee that a hearing is not 

required the Sub-Committee must make its determination within 10 working 
days of being given notice that the hearing is not required. 

 
 
10. Power to exclude people from hearing: 
 
10.1 The public are entitled to attend the hearing as spectators. However, the 

Sub-Committee may exclude any person from the hearing including any 
person assisting or representing a party where: 

• it  considers that the public interest would be best served by excluding 
the public or the individual person from the hearing; or 

• that person is behaving in a disruptive manner. This may include a party 
who is seeking to be heard at the hearing. In the case where a party is to 
be excluded, the party may submit to the Sub-Committee in writing any 
information which they would have been entitled to give orally had they 
not been required to leave the hearing. 

 
 
11. Recording of proceedings: 
 
11.1 A written record of the hearing will be produced and kept for 6 years from 

the date of the determination of the hearing. 
 
12. Power to vary procedure: 
 
12.1 The Sub-committee may depart from following any of the procedures set out 

in this document if it considers the departure to be necessary in order to 
consider an application, notice or representation. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



Licensing Sub-Committee 

Section 1 - Licensing Officer’s report 

Appendix 1 - Copy of the Premises Notice 

Appendix 2 - Copy of the Application 

Appendix 3 - Representations  

Agenda Item 5

Page 7



Page 8



Section 1 

Licensing Officer’s Report 

Page 9



Page 10



LICENSING
SUB-COMMITTEE
18 July 2013  

REPORT

Subject heading: New Porky’s 
Unit1 Manor Way Business Centre 
Marsh Way Rainham RM13 8UG 
Premises licence review

Report author and contact details: Paul Jones, Licensing Officer 
Mercury House, ext. 2692

This application to review a premises licence is made under section 167 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) by Licensing Officer Arthur Hunt on behalf of the 
London Borough of Havering’s Licensing Authority.  The application was 
submitted on 24th June 2013.

Premises’ details 

New Porky’s is located at the entrance to Fairview Industrial Park which is in turn 
located on the outskirts of Rainham.  This isolated industrial estate is approximately one 
kilometre from the nearest residential properties.   

Application to review 

Licensing Officer Arthur Hunt submits this application to review New Porky’s premises 
licence, numbered 3316, in accordance with the provisions of s.167 of the Act.  This 
section is enacted following a closure order made by the Metropolitan Police under 
s.161 and subsequently considered by Redbridge Magistrates’ Court under the 
provisions of s.165 of the Act.

A s.161 closure order was made against New Porky’s by the Metropolitan Police on 14th

April 2013.  The following day, as required, the Metropolitan Police attended Redbridge 
Magistrates’ Court to apply for the court to consider the closure notice in accordance 
with its duty under s.165.  The court considered the closure order and determined that it 
would not exercise any of its rights to further modify the notice under this section.  The 
closure notice therefore expired 24 hours after its initial service. 

S.165(4) requires the court to notify the Licensing Authority of its determination; 
however, this notification was not supplied to Havering until 21st June 2013.  It was 
upon the receipt of the court’s notification that this review process commenced. 

Page 11



Licensing Sub-Committee, 18 July 2013 

Requirements upon the Licensing Authority 

The provisions of s.167(4) of the Act dictate that the Licensing Authority undertakes 
certain functions with regard to an application made under this section.  To this end the 
Licensing Authority gave a copy of the application to the premises licence holder and 
each responsible authority.  It also installed an appropriately worded public notice 
advertising this application at the premises, at Havering Town Hall and on Havering’s 
website inviting interested persons and responsible authorities to make representations 
against, or in support of, the application in accordance with appropriate premises 
licence regulations 37, 38 and 39. 

When determining an application for a premises licence review made after a s.161 
closure notice has been made s.167 of the Act requires that the relevant Licensing 
Authority holds a hearing to consider the closure order and any relevant representations 
made.  A ‘relevant representation’ in such circumstances is one which is made by the 
premises licence holder, a responsible authority or an interested person within the 
consultation period and which is relevant to one or more of the licensing objectives.  
During the hearing the Licensing Authority must take any of the following steps it 
considers necessary to promote the licensing objectives.  These steps are: 

(a)   to modify the conditions of the premises licence 
(b)   to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence 
(c)   to remove the designated premises supervisor from the licence 
(d)   to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months 
(e)   to revoke the licence 

(NB With reference to (a) the premises plans form a condition of the premises licence.) 

Representations 

Although the premises licence holder is entitled to submit a representation to support 
his position he chose not to do so. 

Two representations supporting this application were received from interested persons.  
The first of these two representations was made on behalf of Security Projects UK Ltd 
which operates the security team on Fairview Industrial Park.  The second of these 
representations was made on behalf of Racefold Ltd which is the management 
company of the same industrial park.  Both representations detail numerous issues in 
relation to the prevention of crime and disorder, the prevention of public nuisance and 
public safety. 

Inspector Maxine Blackledge made representation in support of this review application 
on behalf of the Metropolitan Police.  Inspector Blackledge’s representation is based 
upon the prevention of crime and disorder and public safety licensing objectives.  
Inspector Blackledge’s representation suggests that the hours on the licence should be 
reduced from their current terminal hour of 03:00 to 00:30.  Inspector Blackledge also 
suggests a series of conditions which should be modified to Police requirements. 

Page 12



Licensing Sub-Committee, 18 July 2013 

Licensing Specialist Paul Campbell made representation in support of this review 
application on behalf of Havering’s Licensing Authority.  The representation is based 
upon three of the licensing objectives.  Mr Campbell’s view is that the premises licence 
for this venue should be revoked. 

Mr Campbell further advises that if the Licensing Sub-Committee is not minded to 
revoke the licence a series of stringent modifications to the licence should be imposed.  
These include restricting the premises’ licensable area to the ground floor only, 
requiring that alcohol is supplied only to individuals who purchase a table meal, 
imposing a terminal hour of 18:00 for the provision of licensable activity and removing 
the current DPS from this role. 

Copies of all representations and supporting documentation are attached for reference. 

Paul Jones 
Licensing Officer 

Page 13



Page 14



Appendix 1 

Copy of Premises Licence,  
including location map 

Page 15



Page 16



LAPR12.doc 
Misc. Act.003316/PJJ03901 

Premises licence number 003316 

Part 1 – Premises details 

Postal address of premises 

New Porky’s 
Unit 1 Manor Way Business Centre Marsh Way Rainham RM13 8UG 

Where the licence is time limited the dates 

Not applicable 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence 

Indoor sporting events, live music, recorded music, performances of dance, 
provision of facilities for making music, provision of facilities for dancing,  

late night refreshment, supply of alcohol 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 

Indoor sporting events 
Monday to Thursday – 10:00 to 00:00 

Friday & Saturday – 10:00 to 01:00 
Sunday – 10:00 to 22:00 

Live music 
Monday to Sunday – 19:00 to 01:00 

Recorded music 
Monday to Sunday – 19:00 to 03:00 

Performances of dance, provision of facilities for dancing 
Monday to Saturday – 19:00 to 03:00 

Sunday – 19:00 to 01:00 

Provision of facilities for making music 
Sunday to Thursday – 10:00 to 00:00 
Friday & Saturday – 10:00 to 01:00 

Late night refreshment 
Monday to Saturday – 23:00 to 03:00 

Sunday – 23:00 to 01:00 
1 of 7 

Page 17



The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities – contd. 

Supply of alcohol 
Monday to Sunday – 10:00 to 03:00 

The opening hours of the premises 

Monday to Sunday – 10:00 to 03:00 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies 

On supplies only 

Part 2 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises 
licence 

Mr Amrik Basi 
1 Brown's Cottages Clockhouse Lane North Stifford Grays RM16 5UN 

07841 487847 / mik@bas1embroidery.com 

Registered number of holder 

Not applicable 

Name and address of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the 
supply of alcohol 

Mr Amrik Basi 
1 Brown's Cottages Clockhouse Lane North Stifford Grays RM16 5UN 

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises 
supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol 

1918 – London Borough of Havering 

Mandatory conditions 

1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the Premises Licence -  
(a)  at a time when there is no Designated Premises Supervisor in respect of 

the Premises Licence, or
(b)  at a time when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold a 

Personal Licence or his Personal Licence is suspended.  
2. Every supply of alcohol under the Premises Licence must be made or 

authorised by a person who holds a Personal Licence. 
3. (1) The responsible person shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that staff 

on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or participate in any 
irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises. 

2 of 7 

Page 18



Misc. Act./003316/PJJ03901

Mandatory conditions – contd. 

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of 
the following : activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for 
the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption 
on the premises in a manner which carries a significant risk of leading or 
contributing to crime and disorder, prejudice to public safety, public 
nuisance, or harm to children –  
(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed 

to require or encourage, individuals to –
(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink 
alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the 
period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply 
alcohol), or
(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise);  

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a 
fixed or discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a 
particular characteristic (other than any promotion or discount 
available to an individual in respect of alcohol for consumption at a 
table meal, as defined in section 159 of the Act);  

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to 
encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a 
period of 24 hours or less;  

(d) provision of free or discounted alcohol in relation to the viewing on 
the premises of a sporting event, where that provision is dependent 
on–
(i) the outcome of a race, competition or other event or process, or
(ii) the likelihood of anything occurring or not occurring;

(e) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or 
flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be 
considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour 
or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner.  

4. The responsible person shall ensure that no alcohol is dispensed directly by one 
person into the mouth of another (other than where that other person is unable 
to drink without assistance by reason of a disability).  

5. The responsible person shall ensure that free tap water is provided on request to 
customers where it is reasonably available.  

6. The responsible person shall ensure that –  
(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for 

consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied 
having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely 
closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures –  
(i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  
(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and  
(iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; and

(b)  customers are made aware of the availability of these measures. 
3 of 7 

Page 19



Mandatory conditions – contd. 

7. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure 
that an age verification policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or 
supply of alcohol.  
(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to 
be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 
produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 
photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark.  

8. If at specified times one or more individuals must be at the premises to carry out 
a security activity each such individual must be licensed by the Security Industry 
Authority. 

Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating schedule 

1. The CCTV system shall be in operation at the premises at all times when the 
premises is used for licensable activity.  Recorded images shall be kept for 
twenty-eight days and be made available for inspection by Police and Council 
officers at all reasonable times. 

2. Staff shall be trained with regard to the prevention of crime and disorder, public 
safety, the premises’ anti-drug policy and first aid.

3. Clear signage shall be displayed on the premises relating to under-age drinking, 
the unlawful use of drugs and the admission of children to the premises. 

4. A premises’ representative shall attend Havering’s ‘Pubwatch’ meetings. 
5. The premises shall stock low-alcoholic drinks and non-alcoholic drinks. 
6. Risk assessments in relation to public safety and the prevention of public 

nuisance shall be carried out at regular intervals. 
7. The premises licence holder shall ensure that premises’ customers and the 

general public are made aware that they shall be automatically barred from the 
premises if found to be causing a nuisance. 

8. No children shall be admitted to the premises after 14:00 under any 
circumstances.

9. Children may be admitted to the premises between the hours of 11:00 and 14:00 
when accompanied by a responsible adult. 

10. The premises shall have blinds installed to prevent individuals outside the 
premises viewing the inside of the premises. 

11. All staff shall be suitably trained for their job function for the premise.  The 
training shall be written into a programme, ongoing and under constant review, 
and must be available to a relevant Responsible Authority when called upon. 

12. A premises daily register shall be kept at the premises.  This register shall be 
maintained and kept for a minimum of twelve months.  This register should 
record the name of the person responsible for the premises on each given day. 
The premises daily register shall record all calls made to the premises where 
there is a complaint made by a resident or neighbour of noise, nuisance or anti-
social behaviour by persons attending or leaving the premises.  This shall 
record the details of the caller, the time and date of the call and the time and 
date of the incident about which the call is made and any actions taken to deal 
with the call. The premises daily register shall be readily available for inspection 
by an authorised person throughout the trading hours of the premises.  The 
premises daily register shall also record all incidents in relation to the use of 
any force by staff or door supervisors in the removal of persons from the 
premises.  It shall record the time and date of the occurrence, name or brief 
description of the person removed and details of the staff involved.  

4 of 7 

Page 20



Misc. Act./003316/PJJ03901

Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating schedule – contd. 

13. All door supervisors shall enter their full details in the premises daily register at 
the commencement of work.  This shall record their full name, home address, 
contact telephone number, the door supervisor’s SIA registration number and 
the time they commenced and concluded working.  If the door supervisor was 
supplied by an agency details of that agency shall also be recorded including 
the name of the agency, the registered business address and a contact 
telephone number. 

14. The premises licence holder shall supply to the Police a written risk assessment 
detailing the maximum capacity figure which shall include all staff and 
entertainers the applicant intends to permit on the premises at any given time. 

15. Drinks shall be served in containers made from toughened glass (tempered 
glassware).  Note: Weights and Measures legislation requires the use of 
‘stamped glasses’ where ‘meter-measuring equipment’ is not is use.

16. The premises licence holder shall implement a written drugs policy.  This shall 
detail the strategies to minimise the use and supply of illegal drugs within the 
premises.  The drugs policy shall include a structured training programme 
covering the issues relevant to the misuse of drugs in relation to licensed 
premises which shall be delivered to all staff.  This policy shall be approved in 
writing by Havering DAAT. 

17. The designated premises supervisor shall hold a Certificate of Drugs Awareness 
qualification run by the BII or Havering DAAT. 

18. All staff shall be trained in dealing with persons who are incapacitated through 
the use of drugs or the combined effects of drugs and alcohol. 

19. A properly specified and fully operational CCTV system shall be installed or the 
existing system maintained to a satisfactory standard. The system shall 
incorporate a camera covering each of the entrance doors and be capable of 
providing an image which is regarded as ‘identification standard’ of all persons 
entering and/or leaving the premises. All other areas of risk identified in the 
Operational Requirement shall have coverage appropriate to the risk. 

20. The installation or upgrading of any CCTV system shall comply with current 
best practice. In addition the documentation listed below shall be included in a 
‘System File’ which should be readily available for inspection by the relevant 
authority;

! Site plan showing position of cameras and their field of view. 

! Code of Practice. 

! Performance specification e.g. storage capacity, image file size, IPS for each 
camera and purpose of each camera position. 

! Operational requirement. 

! Incident log. 

! Maintenance records including weekly visual checks. 
21. To obtain a clear head and shoulders image of every person entering the 

premises on the CCTV system persons entering the premises should be asked 
to remove headwear unless worn as part of religious observance. 

5 of 7 

Page 21



Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating schedule – contd. 

22. The CCTV system shall incorporate a recording facility and all recordings shall 
be securely stored for a minimum of one calendar month. A system shall be in 
place to maintain the quality of the recorded image and a complete audit trail 
maintained. The system will comply with other essential legislation, and all 
signs as required will be clearly displayed. The system will be maintained and 
fully operational throughout the hours that the premises are open for any 
licensable activity. For premises using a video recording system, the cassette 
tapes shall be used on no more than 12 occasions to maintain the quality of the 
recorded image. 

23. The positions of all CCTV cameras shall be clearly shown on a set of plans 
which should form part of the ‘System File’.  Any alteration to the system should 
only be carried out after consultation with and written approval of Havering 
Police and the Licensing Authority. 

24. An adequate and appropriate supply of first aid equipment and materials shall 
be available on the premises. 

25. At least one trained first-aider shall be on duty when the public are present. 
26. Notices detailing the availability of first aid equipment shall be prominently 

displayed and shall be protected from damage or deterioration. 
27. All members of staff at the premises shall seek “credible photographic proof of 

age evidence” from any person who appears to be under the age of twenty-one 
years and who is seeking access to the premises or is seeking to purchase or 
consume alcohol on the premises.  Such credible evidence, which shall include 
a photograph of the customer, will include a passport, photographic driving 
licence, or Proof of Age card carrying a “PASS” logo. 

28. The premises licence holder shall adopt and support the ‘Challenge 21’ scheme 
and accept passport and photographic driving licence identification. 

29. SIA registered door supervisors shall be employed whenever the premises 
remains open for licensable activity after 23:00.  The downstairs restaurant/bar 
area is subject to an ongoing and continuous risk assessment with regard to the 
use of door supervisors in partnership with the Police and Local Authority.  The 
aforementioned use of door supervisors is a requirement for the upstairs area. 

30. The premises licence holder shall implement a written dispersal policy to move 
customers from the premises and the immediate vicinity in such a way as to 
cause minimum disturbance or nuisance to neighbours both residential and 
business and to make the minimum impact upon the neighbourhood in relation 
to potential nuisance, antisocial behaviour, crime and disorder.  The policy shall 
be approved in writing by the Licensing Authority. 

31. Premises’ management shall ensure that patrons are in a suitable condition to 
travel safely from the venue.  This policy may be highlighted by displaying 
appropriate notices to patrons on leaving the premises. 

32. A capacity limit of sixty persons shall be adhered to on the first floor until such 
times the LFEPA provide written instructions amending the limit. 

33. The premises licence holder shall ensure sufficient numbers of staff are on duty 
at all times on the ground and first floor when in use. 

34. The premises licence holder shall ensure the fire alarm and detection systems 
are fully functional at all times. 

35. The premises licence holder shall comply fully with the Enforcement Notice 
issued by the LFEPA by 16th December 2010. 

6 of 7 

Page 22



Misc. Act./003316/PJJ03901

Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the Licensing Authority 

Not applicable 

Annex 4 – Premises plans 

Full premises plans are held by the Licensing Authority of the London Borough of 
Havering.  The plans reproduced below are not to scale: 

7 of 7 

Page 23



Page 24



Part B 

Premises licence summary 

Premises licence number 003316 

Premises details 

Postal address of premises 

New Porky’s 
Unit 1 Manor Way Business Centre Marsh Way Rainham RM13 8UG 

Where the licence is time limited the dates 

Not applicable 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence 

Indoor sporting events, live music, recorded music, performances of dance, 
provision of facilities for making music, provision of facilities for dancing,  

late night refreshment, supply of alcohol 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 

Indoor sporting events 
Monday to Thursday – 10:00 to 00:00 

Friday & Saturday – 10:00 to 01:00 
Sunday – 10:00 to 22:00 

Live music 
Monday to Sunday – 19:00 to 01:00 

Recorded music 
Monday to Sunday – 19:00 to 03:00 

Performances of dance, provision of facilities for dancing 
Monday to Saturday – 19:00 to 03:00 

Sunday – 19:00 to 01:00 

Provision of facilities for making music 
Sunday to Thursday – 10:00 to 00:00 
Friday & Saturday – 10:00 to 01:00 

Late night refreshment 
Monday to Saturday – 23:00 to 03:00 

Sunday – 23:00 to 01:00 
1 of 2 

Page 25



Misc. Act./003316/PJJ03901

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities – contd. 

Supply of alcohol 
Monday to Sunday – 10:00 to 03:00 

The opening hours of the premises 

Monday to Sunday – 10:00 to 03:00 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and / or off supplies 

On supplies only 

Name, (registered) address of holder of premises licence 

Mr Amrik Basi 
1 Brown's Cottages Clockhouse Lane North Stifford Grays RM16 5UN 

Registered number of holder 

Not applicable 

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of 
alcohol 

Mr Amrik Basi 

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited 

Restricted
2 of 2 

Page 26



London Borough of Havering
Town Hall, Main Road
Romford, RM1 3BD
Tel: 01708 434343

New Porky's

Date: 02 July 2013

Scale: 1:5000

DIGITAL MAP DATA (C) COLLINS BARTHOLOMEW 
LTD (2013)

Size: A4

Page 27



Page 28



Appendix 2 

Copy of Application 

Page 29



Page 30



Barkingside Youth Court
Code 6573

North East Group Administration Centre Redbridge Magistrates Court

850 Cranbrook Road Barkingside Essex IG6 1HW

Tel:020 8437 6525  Fax: 020 8437 6561

CHIEF SUPERINTENDENT
Re. Porky's Case number: 011301048083

Orders

The court has heard the matters shown below and made the orders listed.

Justices' Clerk

J.Vantyghem

Date: 15 April 2013

Matters and orders

011301048083/1 

Application to consider a closure order.

In accordance with section 164 of the Licensing Act 2003.

It is ordered that Section 165 Closure Order considered. Section 165(b) District Judge determined not

to exercise any of those powers.

CHIEF SUPERINTENDENT 17 April 2013/GENORD_28_0/896751/1

Page 31



�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	

�	
�


	�
�
�
�
�
	�


��
��
�
	�


	�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
	

�	
��
�
	�


��
�
	�
�
�
�	
�




�




	�


�
��
	�


�
��
		
�
�
�
�	
�
 
!
"

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
	�


�	
#
 
$%
&
$'
%
#
"
	(
)
�
*	
�


�
��
	+
�
�,
�

-
�
��
�
	�
�
-
��
��
�
��
�
.	�



�
��

�
�
��
�
��
�
	
�


��
�
�
�


�
�
�

�
�
�
�
	�
�
/
0
�
��
	�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
1	
)


�,
2
.�

�
�
��


�
�


�	
)
��
�
�


��
	�



�

�

�/

�


��
	�
)
3
�
	�
)
�
	4
�
5
�
��


-
	�
�
�

�
��
�6
�
�	
�

	6
�
�
�
�	
)
�
	�
7
 
	�
�
�
�
8
��
	3
�

)


�
�9
4
�
�
��


-
	�
�
�
�

�
2
	�
��
��
�
�	

#
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�





�
:
:
;�6
�
��




	�


	6




�
��
�
�	
�
	6
;

�
�
��
	

��
�
�1

��
	�
�
	

��
�
��
�
	�
�
�
�	
�
�
6
��




	#
�
 
	�
;

�
�
��
	�
��
�
�	
6




�
��
�
��
�
1	
�
�
6
��




	#
�
 
(0
*	
�
��
��
�6
�	
�
�
�
-
�

�

	�
6
6


��
�


6
�
	<
��
�
	�
�
6
��




	#
�
&
	

�	
��
�
	�
�6
�


�
�

-
	�
6
�	
'
%
%
"
1

�
�
��
�/

�

�
�
	



�	
�

	�
=
�
�6
��
�
	�


2
	

�	
��


�
�
	:


<
�
��
1

'
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�





�
:
:
;�6
�
��




	�


	6




�
��
�
�	
�
	6
;

�
�
��
	

��
�
�	
/
�
�
�
	



	#
&
$%
&
$'
%
#
"
	�


	�
�
�
:
�
6
�	


�	
�
�
<

�


��
��
�
	�


	�
��


�1
	�


6


��
�
6
�	


��
�


6
�
	�


��
��
�

)


�,
2
.�
>	
�


��
	#
>	
�
�




�	
+
�
�
�

�
�
�
	8

�
2
	�
�


��
�
>	
�
�
��
�
	8

�
2
>	
�
�
�

�
�
/
>	
�
�
�
�
=
>

�
�
#
"
	?
�
�
	1

�

	�
6
6


��
�


6
�
	<
��
�
	�
�
6
��




	#
!
7
+
	

�	
��
�
	�
�6
�


�
�

-
	�
6
�	
#
7
�
&
1

�	
6
�
��
��
2
	�
�
�
	�
0


5
�
	�
=
��
�
6
�	
�

	0
�
	�
	�
��
�
	6


:
2

�
�
��
	)
��


��
�
�	
'
#
$%
�
$'
%
#
"



�	
��
�
	�
�
��
	�
�
-
��
��
�
��
�
@	
�


�
��
1

	
�
�
�
��
�
��
��

Page 32



Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate under the 

Licensing Act 2003 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.

If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure 

that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records. 

I Arthur Hunt 

  (Insert name of applicant)

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 167  of the Licensing Act 2003 for 

the premises described in Part 1 below  

Part 1 – Premises or club premises details   

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 

New Porkys 
Unit 1, 
Manor Way Business centre,  
Marsh Way 

Post town Rainham Post code (if known) RM13 8UG

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known) 

Mr Amrik Basi 

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)  

3316

Part 2 - Applicant details  

I am 

Please tick ! yes 

1) an individual, body or business which is not a responsible 

authority (please read guidance note 1, and complete (A) 

or (B) below)

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below)

3) a member of the club to which this application relates 

(please complete (A) below)

Page 33



(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)

Please tick ! yes 

Mr Mrs Miss Ms Other title       

(for example, Rev)

Surname  First names 

            

Please tick ! yes 

I am 18 years old or over 

Current postal  

address if  

different from 

premises

address

      

Post town      Post Code       

Daytime contact telephone number       

E-mail address 

(optional)

      

(B)  DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name and address 

      

Telephone number (if any) 

      

E-mail address (optional)  

      

Page 34



 (C)  DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Name and address 

Licensing Authority 

London Borough of Havering 

5
th

 Floor 

Mercury House 

Mercury Gardens 

Romford 

RM1 1LS 

Telephone number (if any) 

01708 432777 

E-mail address (optional)  

licensing@havering.gov.uk 

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s) 

Please tick one or more boxes !

1) the prevention of crime and disorder

2) public safety

3) the prevention of public nuisance

4) the protection of children from harm

Page 35



Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 2)
On the 14 April 2013 Police were called to the premises on a number of occasions following 
calls made by members of the public. 

As a consequence the senior officer at the scene decided to utilise their powers  under S 161 
Licensing Act 2013 and closed the premises.   

On the 15 April Police attended Redbridge Magistrates Court and the closure was heard.  The 
court decided not to extend the closure but ratified the decision of the Police in the initial 
instance. 

S167 Licensing Act 2003 states:- 

Review of premises licence following closure order 
(1)This section applies where—  

(a)a closure order has come into force in relation to premises in respect of which a premises 
licence has effect, and  

(b)the relevant licensing authority has received a notice under section 165(4) (notice of 
magistrates' court’s determination), in relation to the order and any extension of it.  

(2)The relevant licensing authority must review the premises licence.  

(3)The authority must reach a determination on the review no later than 28 days after the day 
on which it receives the notice mentioned in subsection (1)(b). 

Following the hearing, there have been extensive enquiries with the court with regards to 
S167 (1) (b).  Initially the court were unable to confirm the court appearance.  Subsequently 
on the 21 June 2013 documentation arrived with Havering’s Legal and Democratic services. 

Page 36



Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read 

guidance note 3)

Page 37



                                                                                                                                  Please tick ! yes 

Have you made an application for review relating to the

premises before

If yes please state the date of that application Day Month Year 

If you have made representations before relating to the premises please state what they were 

and when you made them 

      

Page 38



                                                                                                                                  Please tick !

yes 

! I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities 

and the premises licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate, 

as appropriate

! I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my 

application will be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON THE 

STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 TO MAKE 

A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION 

Part 3 – Signatures   (please read guidance note 4) 

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (please read 

guidance note 5). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

Signature     

Date             24 June 2013
…………………………………………………………………………………………………

Capacity      Licensing Officer
…………………………………………………………………………………………………

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence 

associated with this application (please read guidance note 6)

Post town 

     

Post Code 

      

Telephone number (if any)        

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-mail address 

(optional)       

Page 39



Notes for Guidance  

1. A responsible authority includes the local police, fire and rescue authority and other 

statutory bodies which exercise specific functions in the local area. 

2. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives. 

3. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems which are 

included in the grounds for review if available. 

4. The application form must be signed. 

5. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided 

that they have actual authority to do so. 

6. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

Page 40



LICENSING ACT 2003 
APPLICATION FOR PREMISES LICENCE 

REVIEW

New Porkys, Unit 1 Manor Way Business Centre, 
Marsh Way, Rainham, RM13 8UG 

Notice is hereby given that an application has been 
made by the Licensing Authority of the London 
Borough of Havering for a review of the above 
premises licence. 

GROUNDS FOR REVIEW 
An application is made under the “Crime and 
Disorder” Licensing Objective.  On the 14th April 2013 
following several reports of disturbances at or near 
the premises, the police exercised their powers under 
section 161 Licensing Act to close the premises.  This 
was later reviewed before Redbridge Magistrates 
Court.  Under section 167 Licensing Act, the Licensing 
Authority must review the premises licence. 

Any interested party or responsible authority wishing 
to make representation on this matter must do so in 
writing to: Licensing Section, 5th Floor Mercury House, 
Mercury Gardens, Romford, RM1 3SL between 24 
June  and 8 July 2013. 

The public register of Havering’s Licensing Authority 
containing the grounds for this review may be 
inspected by appointment at the above address by 
telephoning 01708 432777 Monday to Friday 09:00hrs 
to 17:00hrs or at www.havering.gov.uk.

It is an offence to knowingly or recklessly make a 
false statement in connection with an application for a 
review.  On summary conviction a person is liable to a 
fine not exceeding level 5 on the standard scale 
(currently £5000). 

Page 41



Page 42



Section 3 

Valid Representations 

Page 43



Page 44



KD - Havering Borough 
KD - Romford Police Station 

Licensing Authority 
London Borough Of Havering 
Mercury House 
Mercury gardens 
RM1 3SL 

Romford Police Station 
19 Main Road 
Romford  
RM1 3BJ 

Telephone: 0203 276 2804 
Facsimile:
Email:
Maxine.Blackledge2@met.police.uk
www.met.police.uk 

Your ref:  
Our ref: New Porkys variation 12564

6th July 2013 

Police request Havering Licensing Committee to consider the following in respect of 
the review hearing for New Porky’s Unit, 1 Manor Way, Business centre Marsh Way, 
Rainham RM13 8UG. 

Police request a reduction in the times for licensable activity as detailed below.  

Reduction in opening hours from 0300 to 0100. 
Reduction in supply of alcohol from 0300 to 0030 hours.  
Reduction in recorded music from 0300 to 0030 hours.
Reduction in late night refreshment from 0300 to 0030 hours
Reduction in performance of dance, provision of facilities for dancing from 0300 to 
0030 hours 

Police believe that a reduction in hours will address the increase of crime and 
disorder associated with the premise and increase public safety.  

The following information is recorded against the premise.  

Police have received information via crime stoppers regarding the sale of alcohol 
outside of the licensed hours. This information is further supported by police being 
called to the premises on 10th December 2012 at 0415hrs regarding a disturbance, 
on 31st December 2012 at 0625hrs regarding noise disturbance and again on the 
19th January 2013 regarding an allegation of assault involving the door staff at 
0320hrs. Police have also received information that customers are often known to 
drive from the premises under the influence of alcohol.

The local Safer Neighbourhood team have been made aware of complaints of people 
leaving New Porky’s and urinating on nearby premises and an increase of litter from 
discarded plastic cups.  

On 24th February 2013 0450hrs I conducted a licensing visit. I saw vehicles double 
parked on the carriageway to the side entrance causing an obstruction. The car park 
directly outside the front entrance was again filled to capacity with vehicles double 
parked.  I observed drivers of vehicles remonstrating with each other in order to 
manoeuvre their vehicles. I believe that London Fire Brigade and London Ambulance 
would have difficulty gaining vehicular access in the case of an emergency. This Page 45



presents a public safety issue to persons within the premise and indeed other users 
of the industrial estate.
There were approximately 15 people queuing to gain access to the front of the 
premise.  I observed them pushing towards the singular door, trying to get past the 
door supervisor. I spoke to the door supervisor who did not hold an SIA badge who 
confirmed that the premise usually stays open until 0500hrs. There were other 
members of staff within the lobby area, some of which held SIA badges.

The music was still playing and could be heard from outside.  

I spoke to Richard Spooner the manager of the premises. I highlighted the following 
concerns.
1) Licensable activity was being conducted past the licensed hours of 0300 finish.   
2) One door supervisor controlling the front door was insufficient given the nature of 
those in the queue.
3) Front door supervisor had no means of keeping count of the number of customers 
entering / exiting the premise. This carries risk of exceeding the maximum capacity. 
4) All door supervisors must be licensed by the Security Industry Authority.  
5) The side entrance which provides a smoking area is unsupervised and vulnerable 
to customers entering unnoticed which again provides risk to capacity issues.
6) The SIA log produced by Mr Spooner was inadequate. It was a note pad with 
perforated sleeves. The only record made was forenames recorded on the corner of 
the page.

I conducted a second licensing visit on Sunday 17th March at 0330 hours and again 
spoke with Richard Spooner. The premise was closed although there were a number 
of people on the premise who Mr Spooner stated were staff members.

Cad 1459/14Apr13 refers to a call stating a doorman from the premise had smashed 
the window of a parked vehicle.

Cad 1463/14Apr13 female calls for police to venue, disturbance heard in 
background, line clears.  

Police attend and the premise was closed by Inspector Lorraine Cowley using 
section 161 Licensing Act 2003.  Inspector Cowley provides a statement which 
evidences the premise undermining the licensing objectives of prevention of crime 
and disorder, public safety and prevention of public nuisance. For example, SIA door 
supervisors not displaying their identity badges, witnessing heated arguments 
between customers on the premise, customers preparing to fight and drunkenness. 

The police believe that if all of the above incidents are considered collectively and 
that all the incidents have been generated within a four month period, this supports 
the police request to reduce the licensable hours of this premise.

Police also request a review of condition 14 - annex 2, to include 2 further conditions 
in relation to organised events.

 CD42 - The licensee shall undertake a risk assessment of any promotion or 

event  using the MPS Promotion/Event Risk Assessment (Form 696) or an 

equivalent and provide a copy* to the Metropolitan Police Service and the 

licensing authority not less than 14 days before the event is due to take 

place. 

 CD43 - Where an 'event' has taken place, the licensee shall complete an 

MPS after Promotion/Event Debrief Risk Assessment (Form 696A) and Page 46



submit this* to the Metropolitan Police and the Licensing Authority within 3 

days of the conclusion of the event.  

*submission of electronic documents by e-mail is preferred. 

Police request an amendment to condition 32 - annex 2 to include a counting system 
to monitor attendance on first floor.

          The licensee shall install a monitoring system / device to maintain a current  
          count of all persons present within the upstairs premise at anyone time  
          during licensable hours. This count will include staff. The total count is not  
          to exceed the capacity limit given by the LFEPA. This count shall be given to  
          police and local authority upon request.

If I can be of any further assistance in this matter please do not hesitate to contact 

me in the licensing office.

Yours sincerely, 

Maxine Blackledge 
Licensing Officer 
Havering Borough 

Page 47



Page 48



Public Protection Bringing together Environmental Health & Trading Standards 

O:\Flare\masters\aletter.doc  \ 

Havering Licensing Authority 
Mercury House 
Mercury Gardens 
Romford
RM1 3SL 

My Reference: PPC/012873 

New Porky’s, Unit 1, Manor Way Business Centre, Marsh Way, Rainham, RM13 8UG

As a responsible authority within the definitions of this Act this Licensing Authority makes 
representation in support of the review against the premises detailed above. 

My representation to support the review is based on the four licensing objectives, the 
premises has Crime and Disorder matters already directly related to it there has been 
reports of fights at the premises, the premises have been illegally operating outside of their 
licensed times, licensing conditions on the Premises Licence have not been kept to, 
vehicles leaving the premise have been involved in accidents and drink driving.  Public
Safety persons that have been drinking at the premises have been found wandering 
around the industrial estate where vehicle and commercial equipment is being used.  
Public Nuisance There have been reports of customers of the venue urinating against the 
doorways of neighbouring units also of customers going into other business premises.  

In the recent application made to extend the licensing hours at the premises the applicant 
made no reference in the application to

! Minimum staffing levels for the later hour,

! How they propose to deal with late comers to the venue who may already be under 
the influence of alcohol.  

! If there is an incident how they will deal with it,

! If there will be a searching policy at the premises  

! What they will do with any illegal items seized 

! How they will deal with parking on the estate to the later hour where persons 
arriving for an early start at work will need access. 

! How they will restrict the number of persons to the first floor. 

! How will they try to prevent persons driving if they have had too much to drink 

! How will they try to prevent their customers wandering around the estate 

! What additional procedures they will put into place to prevent Crime and Disorder 

! What extra measures they will take to promote Public Safety 

! How they will prevent Public Nuisance at the later finish time 

! How they will maintain the Protection for Children 

Public Protection 

London Borough of Havering 
Mercury House, Mercury Gardens 
Romford RM1 3SL 

Telephone:   01708 432766 
Fax:  01708 432554 
email: paul.campbell@havering.gov.uk
Textphone !:     01708 433175 

Date:  3rd July 2013  

Page 49



Public Protection Bringing together Environmental Health & Trading Standards 

O:\Flare\masters\aletter.doc  \ 

All of these points show that the management of the premises do not have a grasp of the 
requirements of the Licensing Act 2003 which are needed to run a safe premises. 

Police closed the premises under their powers because of serious crime and the fear of 
that escalating, the magistrates upheld the police action as being correct.  This premise 
was being poorly managed and run and I believe my representation will add to that 
concern.

The premises is situated on a business industrial estate, the only reasonable access to it is 
by car or taxi, there is no public transport to the area at a late hour.

This premises is very near the boundary of Havering and Dagenham if there are crime and 
disorder problems at the premises assistance from the police could be a considerable time 
in arriving at the venue.  This matter does not seem to have been taken into consideration 
by the licence holder in his previous business operations or the fact that they have a duty 
of care to their customers. 

The London Borough of Havering Statement of Licensing Policy states in section 3 that the 
finish time for regulated activity in mixed use areas is 00.30hrs.  The premises licence 
permitted hours are past this time, the licence holder has operated the premises outside of 
the licensed times and problems have happened at the premises during these late times. 

I bring the Sub-Committee’s attention to item 4.5 of the Licensing Policy which states 
“It is the intention of the LLA to permit licensing hours which enhance the development of a 
thriving and safe evening and night-time economy” –
This premise is not keeping to its current licence conditions, it is not taking public safety 
seriously, it is already causing problems to the police and others, it has put no actions 
forward to me since the closure to make their premises safer or enhance anything to the 
community.

These premises were in the first instance a café for the use of the industrial estate, late 
alcohol was introduced for the benefit of lorry drivers sleeping in their cabs when parked 
on the estate overnight since that time the premises have changed and although a café 
during the daytime is a night club during the evening. 

To assist the Sub-Committee and to see if I could support the recent application to extend 
their licensing hours I carried out an inspection of the premises.
On Friday 8th March 2013 I telephoned the premises and informed them that I would be 
carrying out an inspection at the premises on the morning of Monday 11th March 2013 and 
that I would be reporting my findings to the Licensing Sub-Committee at a future hearing. 

As I had informed the premises that I would be making an inspection I was expecting all 
things to be in order and to be presented to me. I spoke to the manager (Mr Spooner) we 
discussed the licensed times and the recent police inspection at the premises, he admitted 
to me that the premises were open past their finish times when the police attended, a 
reason for this was not given to me. 

I went through with him each Mandatory Condition on the licence and was given the 
assurance that all of these are adhered to. 
These are my findings on that date relating to the licence conditions (starting on page 4 of 
7 of the Premises licence) 

Page 50



Public Protection Bringing together Environmental Health & Trading Standards 

O:\Flare\masters\aletter.doc  \ 

1. CCTV – A CCTV is in operation at the premises and appears to be of a good 
standard

2. Staff Training – I was told that staff are trained regularly but no training records 
could be produced. 

3. Signage – Correct – Challenge 21 signage is displayed at the premises 
4. Pubwatch – The licence holder has not attended the Pubwatch meetings but they 

may not have been informed of the dates. 
5. Non alcoholic drinks – Correct – Soft drinks are available. 
6. Public Safety risk assessments – The manager could not tell me of any risk 

assessments taken out at the premises. 
7. Customers barred if causing nuisance – I was told that door staff inform persons 

of this. 
8. No children after 14.00 – Correct – Children – this was a condition of the licence 

that the manager wishes to remove or alter but no reference to this is made in the 
previous application. 

9. Children must be accompanied – Correct – Children – this was a condition of the 
licence that the manager wishes to remove or alter but no reference to this is made 
in the previous application. 

10.  Vision from outside – Correct – Vision – the premises can not be viewed from 
outside

11.Training – I was told this was taking place but no training records could be 
produced. 

12.Daily Register – There was no daily register in place at the premises the manager 
and I discussed at length how this can be done. 

13.Door supervisors register – There was some records of door supervisors in a 
separate book but did not cover the previous year. 

14.Police risk assessment – There was no record that this had been done. 
15.Toughened Glass – The glassware behind the bar was not toughened glass. 
16.Drugs policy – There was no record that this had been done. 
17.Drugs Awareness Qualification – There was no record that this had been done. 
18.Training relating to persons incapacitated through drink or drugs  – I was told 

that this had been done but no training records were available. 
19.CCTV – Correct – CCTV this appeared to be of a good standard. 
20.CCTV – Correct – CCTV this appeared to be of a good standard. 
21.CCTV – Correct – CCTV a camera was positioned by the entrance used by 

customers.
22.CCTV – Correct – CCTV this appeared to be of a good standard. 
23.CCTV system file – CCTV – There was no systems file showing the position of the 

CCTV cameras. 
24.First Aid – Correct – Full first aid equipment was available. 
25.First Aider on site – I was told that there was a qualified person on site when open 

to the public. 
26.Notices – Correct – Notices relating to first aid equipment were on display. 
27.Proof of age – I was told this was done when the premises is open. 
28.Challenge 21 – Correct – Challenge 21 signs were displayed. 
29.Door Staff – I was told that SIA door staff were employed when the premises were 

open at night. 
30.Dispersal policy – No policy was available for me to inspect. 
31.Travel safety – Signs were in position and I was told that staff also remind people 

when leaving. 

Page 51



Public Protection Bringing together Environmental Health & Trading Standards 

O:\Flare\masters\aletter.doc  \ 

32.Capacity limit – The manager told me that this limit was not kept to and could not 
produce any alteration form the Fire Service to alter the limit of 60 persons on the 
first floor. 

33.Number of staff – I was told that the correct amount of staff were employed at the 
premises.

34.Fire alarm – Correct –I was told that this was checked on a regular basis. 
35.LFEPA enforcement notice – This was issued in 2010 I have no records in 

relation to this matter. 

The premises were not operating to the conditions that are on their current licence three of 
these are high risk for Crime and Disorder –

! Condition 12 – Daily register – this is good practice for any business and especially 
one involved in alcohol and entertainment.  A daily register has not been kept at the 
premises.  No record of complaints has been kept, no record of who was in control 
of the premises at any date and time, no records of door supervisors removing 
persons from the premises has been kept.  Without this record it seriously restrict 
the police investigating any crime or a responsible authority following up a 
complaint or investigation. 

! Condition 15 – Drinks all be served in toughened glass – All late night premises 
serving alcohol in Romford Town Centre use toughened glass or similar this has 
drastically reduced the incidents of serious injury being caused by glass – all the 
glasses in the upper floor bar of New Porky’s had the potential to be used as a 
weapon and to cause serious injury. 

! Condition 32 – Capacity limit of 60 persons on the first floor – This has not been 
kept to by the premises, the licence holder has not contacted the Fire Service to 
alter the number and no reference to it has been made on this application. 

The following conditions on the licence 2, 4, 6, 11, 13, 14, 16, 17, 18, 23, 25 and 30 all 
need to be fully in place and / or improved for the current licence to be considered as an 
acceptable level. 

! This is not a well run premises. 

! It has become a late night drinking venue with little regard to its current licensing 
conditions.

! I have serious concerns over their record keeping relating to assisting the police 
and other authorities if an incident occurs.

! Public safety is at risk because of their failure to change to toughened glass 
allowing potential weapons to be readily available.

! The licence holder has not kept to the limit placed on the upper floor by the Fire 
Service or made any attempt to alter it with them. 

If the police had not taken the action they did in closing the premises, a far more serious 
incident could have easily taken place at the premises with serious injury or worse.

There is little in place at the premises to reduce risk of an incident and if an incident had 
taken place at the premises apart from the CCTV there would be few records to assist the 
police and other emergency services with their investigations. 

The premises has not kept to its Premise Licence conditions and has been allowed to or 
encouraged to develop into a late night drinking venue, it has given little regard to public 
safety, a high level of crime and disorder has taken place at the premises or because of 

Page 52



Public Protection Bringing together Environmental Health & Trading Standards 

O:\Flare\masters\aletter.doc  \ 

the way the premises were conducting their business and public nuisance has taken place 
interfering with neighbouring properties. 

I feel that the correct course of action for the Sub-Committee to take is to revoke the 
premises licence for this venue. 

If the sub-Committee feel it is correct for the ground floor café area to be licensed I would 
ask that

! The licence is for the ground floor only 

! Restaurant conditions are imposed with the need for persons to be taking a table 
meal to be able to buy and consume alcohol. 

! The finish time for such a licence is 18.00hrs  

! The DPS is changed from Mr Basi to someone who is working at the premises 
during the day. 

Paul Campbell 
Licensing Specialist 

Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62


	Agenda
	4 REPORT OF THE CLERK
	5 REPORT OF THE LICENSING OFFICER

